PUBLISHED BY DEDICATED TO

THOSE WHO CARE LIBERTY, JUSTICE

NEW YORK, NEW YORK RIGHTNESS, EQUALITY

AND UNITY

COPYRIGHT 1967 BY AMUNUBI RAHKAPTAH

PRINTED

IN

THE UNITED STATES

OF

.AMERICA

1

CONTENTS

ForwardPage	: 4
A. Who were Adam and Eve by race and religion?	7
B. Who was the Serpent and how did it beguile Eve?	7
C. What were the results of breaking the commandments and Laws of the Sun God?	8
D. Where is the Land of Nod and what was the MARK that God (the Moon God) set on Cain?	9
E. Who was Cain's wife and did they ever return from the Land of Nod?	10
F. Did any Ethiopians, that is, so-called Negroes, help write and make history in the Bible?	11
G. When did the Great Flood of Noah occur and what caused it?	12
H. Who were Noah and his three sons by race and religion?	12
I. What is the mystery behind the curse of Canaan?	14
J. Who was Melchizedek, Abraham, Isaac, and Jacob?	15
K. Who were Esau, and Jacob and Jacob's twelve sons?	16
L. Who was Moses by race and religion?	18
M. Since Moses was a king of Egypt, why did the Jews take, him as their divine leader and hero	?19
N. Was Thothmose the First of Egypt, Moses the Law-giver?	21
O. Is biblical history backed up by secular history?	22
P. Why do science and the Bible disagree concerning the Creation?	24
Q. Who was Jesus by race and religion?	25
R. What is a spirit and how does an incarnation take place?	29
S. What is Nuwaupu?	32

4 FOREWORD

- 1. There is a SPELL upon the Ethiopian (the Wooly-Haired People) the World over, and it is a spell of spiritual ignorance and racial indifference cast upon the Ethiopian by Leviathan from the Caucasian and his Bible, and this is WHY no one has been able to really unite the Ethiopian in any considerable numbers, and is also WHY the people of African descent have not been able to make real progress toward freedom and equality. With the help of the Caucasian, Leviathan (the God of the Caucasians) hypnotized the Ethiopian with its magic powers and SEALED the hypnosis with spiritual ignorance and racial indifference, and the only way the spell can be broken and the Ethiopian be free again and free indeed is that the spiritual ignorance be destroyed by spiritual knowledge and understanding, and the racial indifference be destroyed by racial knowledge and understanding.
- 2. It is futile trying to free hypnotized people without using the magic formula that will reverse the hypnotic spell which is keeping them in captivity. Part of the magic formula to reverse or destroy the evil hypnotic spell of Leviathan is this Booklet. It is futile trying to unite so-called Negroes, physically, without first uniting them, mentally. If we can achieve mental unity, we are automatically united physically, because a person talks and acts the way that he or she thinks, hence, the results of ignorant thoughts are ignorant words and ignorant works. If the minds of those of a kind are enslaved, that kind is enslaved no matter where they may be. If the minds of those of a kind are free, the physical persons are free or will soon be free, because the mind is the control, and thereby determines the course that the person or persons will take.
- 3. When the mind is out of order, the person is out of order. When the minds of Ethiopians are divided, the physical persons are divided. Common knowledge, meaning, knowledge that all or the mass majority of Ethiopians will understand and accept will unite our minds. There can be no mental unity as long as the spell of spiritual ignorance is upon us, and there can be no physical unity as long as the spell of racial indifference is upon us. When destruction of the spell is complete, the Ethiopian will have a free and united mind. Right knowledge by the help of the Forces of Nature will destroy the evil spell of confusion, ignorance, apathy, and disunity among Ethiopians. Right knowledge is designed to free, discipline, and unite the minds of Ethiopians, then the rest of our heritage will come as sufficient effort is made. Right knowledge, wisdom, and understanding are the magic formula necessary to counteract and destroy the evil hypnotic spell of Leviathan, because right knowledge causes the Ethiopian to think right and take the right steps toward liberty, justice, and equality by the help of the Forces of Nature.
- 4. This Booklet (Booklet 1) provides some of the questions and answers necessary to break the evil spell. When the spell is broken, the spell and its evil results of disunity, hate for each other, disorder, apathy, and oppression will pass away from the Ethiopian and other oppressed peoples. All Ethiopians who accept the answers and explanations in this Booklet and the facts of other Booklets that may follow, will soon be liberated from oppression and captivity and be equal. The Ethiopian lost his and her spiritual powers long ago, but this Booklet will help us regain them by helping to destroy ignorance, because without the restoration of our OWN spiritual powers, we can never be free and equal again. Our own spiritual powers are in NUW AUPU (pronounced NOO-WAH-POO), the spiritual science of the Ethiopian, the Wooly-Haired People all over Planet Earth.

A Who were Adam and Eve, by race and religion?

- 5. Adam and Eve were Hindu (East Indian) and their religion was Hinduism. We must understand that NAME PLURALITY is a key to understanding the Bible. Adam was not one man but a branch of the Hindu People. The female of that branch is called Eve in the Bible. Adam and Eve were the first men and women of this world, meaning, the first people of THE MOON CYCLE, that is, the first people converted to the Moon God's way of life. An ancient name of the Moon and Moon God is SIN. The Moon Cycle (the Sin Cycle) began approximately six thousand (6000) years ago. There were millions of people of other races on Planet Earth when Adam and Eve were ousted from the Garden of Eden (Africa and Asia) and sent to the Aegean Islands.
- B. Who was the Serpent and how did it beguile Eve?
- 6. The Serpent was LEVIATHAN (a giant sex and spirit force) who is able to control peoples and nations by sex and by spirit generated from blood and the waters of the Earth. Leviathan, who has many spirit members and parts distributed throughout the Earth was cast from the Sun approximately seventeen million two hundred fifty thousand (17,250,000) years ago just before the EVOLUTIONARY CYCLE began. The Moon Cycle is the climax of the Evolutionary Cycle, The Serpent, Leviathan, is the Moon God, Sin, who hypnotized Eve and excited her womanhood by its forces and in turn Eve excited Adam's manhood, and they had sexual intercourse which was forbidden by the laws of the Sun God, because Adam and Eve were priests and nuns. Before Adam and Eve defiled it, sex was SACRED, meaning, it was used only out of necessity not out of lust. The Serpent Lucifer brought lust into the picture, and it does this through stimulating Sex in various ways and this is why it is called a sex force as well as a spirit force.
- C. What were the results of breaking the Commandments and laws of the Sun God?
- 7. The priest and nuns called Adam and Eve were sent to the Aegean Islands between Asia and Europe, where they started having children, and each couple's first born child was an ALBINO and those albinos are called CAIN in the Bible, and Cain is short for CAUCASIAN. Adam and Eve had more children and those born after Cain were called Abel. Abel was black like his and her parents, but of course East Indians have straight hair. The children caned Cain grew up envying and hating the children called Abel and as a result, a conflict developed between the two groups, and Cain (aided by the Moon God) killed Abel. The older people left alive demanded that Cain be sent away for his and her evil doings; then the Moon God (the God who beguiled Eve) appeared to the leader of the Cain group in a dream (Genesis the 4th chapter).
- D. Where is the Land of Nod and what was the MARK that God (the Moon God) set on Cain?
- 8. The Land, of Nod is Europe. Cain went west of Eden not east of Eden. There were Darker Peoples living in the Land of Nod who would destroy Cain, therefore, the Moon God (the God who beguiled Eve) set a mark on Cain (Genesis 4 chapter 15 verse) to save him and her, and that mark was the sign of his and her spiritual powers. The mark was the CROSS, and although this was not the beginning of the cross, this event was the beginning of CHRISTIANITY, the religion of the Caucasian. Cain was an offspring of the Hindu and thereby got his and her

spiritual powers from Hinduism; Hinduism is a PANTHEISTIC religion, meaning, another form of Pantheism. The Indians (both East and West) had the cross (the swastika, ankh, and other forms) in time immemorial, but the passing of the cross by the Moon God from the Indian to the Caucasian constituted Christianity, because this meant that the POWERS of the cross also had been passed from the Indians to the Caucasians, therefore, the power of the Indians gradually decreased and the power of the Caucasians increased.

- E. Who was Cain's wife and did they ever return from the Land of Nod?
- 9. Cain was not one person but a group of ALBINOS who were the beginning of the Caucasian Race. Therefore, Cain was males and females, and of course the males took the females for mates. The first group of Cainites returned to the Aegean islands and from there to the Garden of Eden approximately one thousand (1000) years after Adam and Eve had been ousted from that Paradise. The time was around three thousand (3000) B.C. when King Cheops of Egypt (who was ruling western Asia and northern Africa at that time) lifted the immigration ban which had been placed on Adam and Eve and their offspring to keep them from returning to the Garden of Eden (Asia and Africa).
- 10. When Cain reached the Garden, he and she were not called Cain any more; they were called SETH (same as Egyptian Set which means SERPENT). In the Bible, Seth is pictured as the third son of Adam and Eve, but the birth of Seth actually means a rebirth for Adam and Eve (in person of Cain) back to the lands (Africa and Asia) of culture and riches. Notice in the Bible how similar some of the names of the descendants of Cain and Seth are (Genesis the 4th and 5th chapters). It is no coincidence. So all this means that the Bible is the SPIRITUAL BOOK OF CAIN AND HIS GOD, the Moon God, who has many names and titles, such as Sin, Set, Thoth, Siva, Hermes, Leviathan (Poseidon).
- F. Did any Ethiopians, that is, so-called Negroes, help write and make history in the Bible?
- 11. Yes, but they were only being used by the Moon God, just as Negro religious leaders and their people are still being used today against themselves. One must go back beyond three thousand (3000) B.C. to find the true kingly and real queenly history of the Ethiopian, the People with Wooly Hair, The Original Kings of Egypt were ETHIOPIAN (black with Wooly Hair) but most latter-day kings and people of Egypt were PHOENESIAN, a branch of the Hindu people. The foundation of Egyptian culture and knowledge were laid by Wooly-Haired People in time immemorial before the Phoenesian intrusion into Egypt.
- G. When did the Great Flood of Noah occur and what caused it?
- 12. The Great Flood of Noah occurred approximately 17 million 250 thousand (17,250,000) years ago, and this means that Noah existed long before Adam in the sense of time. In fact, Adam was descendants of Noah. The history of the Ancients shows that a subcontinent called Atlantis existed at the time of the Great Flood, and it was submerged under water by Lucifer's fall to Earth after being cast from The Sun. As it came to Earth, The Great Serpent's powers caused interference with the magnetism that controls the Earth and Moon in their courses, and this interference bought on the Great Deluge, both from the sky and the waters of the Earth which rolled over parts of the Planet like tidal waves. Lucifer is Leviathan (Job the 41st

chapter; Isaiah 27th chapter 1 verse; Revelations 12th chapter 9 verse; Genesis 3 chapter 1 verse) who is The Moon God called Sin by the Ancients. Noah's Arc (Arch) is the CRESCENTS of the MOON.

- H. Who were Noah and his three sons by race and religion?
- 13. Noah was the male and female spirit forces that were the beginning of THE EVOLUTIONARY CYCLE, the cycle of growth and change. The male and female spirit forces called Noah were the beginning of MANKIND, because they caused certain types of tailless monkeys to evolve into man. This monkey evolution is acknowledged by scientists and anthropologists, that is, they found irrefutable evidence of the monkey evolution. The evolution of monkey to man started soon after the Flood. Evolution was a kind of second creation, because it caused living beings to grow bigger and there were some changes in form and complexion. The people on Earth before the flood were not called MAN, for they were the Original Personification of THE ORIGINAL CREATIVE FORCES. The people who existed before the flood were called PTAH, but are now called the AFRICAN PYGMY. P-T-A-H is rightly pronounced TAR. The African Pygmies are wooly-haired DWARFS who live in EQUATORIAL AFRICA
- 14. Ptah is the Fathers and Mothers of all Creation, for they are the Personification of the powers of the True Stars of whom The Sun is one. The True Stars of the Elements are the Creative Forces that emanate Creative Power. The religion of Noah and his three sons was PANTHEISM. The 3 sons of Noah (Noah was the spirit evolution forces) were Ham (the Phoenicians), Shem (the Hindus), and Japheth (the Mongolians). By the name Mongolian is meant people like the Chinese and Japanese. The Phoenicians (Ham), the Hindus (Shem), and the Mongolian (Japheth) are the fathers and mothers of all mankind. MANKIND is all peoples with straight hair by Nature. The Ethiopian (the Wooly-Haired People) evolved from the African Pygmy (the Dwarf Ethiopian) after the Great Flood, therefore, the biggest Ethiopian is actually EVOLUTIONARY PTAH. The Ethiopian has always had Wooly Hair from Original Creation. The biggest Ethiopian started evolving from small Ethiopian (the Pygmy) the same time that man started evolving from monkey.
- I. What is the mystery behind the curse of Canaan?
- 15. Canaan was a branch of the Phoenician People. The curse of Canaan is a fabricated story designed by its authors to degrade the Ethiopian (the Wooly-Haired People) during the Moon Cycle. We have been taught in the western hemisphere that Canaan was cursed BLACK and his hair made KINKY as a part of the curse. This untruth was created to explain off the existence of the Ethiopian's odd Wooly Hair and Black Skin and at the same time provide a basis to heap the hates and force the desires of mankind upon the Ethiopian.
- 16. But this Booklet tells the Ethiopian that he and she is neither Phoenicians nor a branch of the Phoenician People, but evolutionary descendents of the African Pygmies who had Wooly Hair and Black Skin from original Creation. In fact, all people had black skin at their ORIGINAL beginning. The authors of the book of Genesis had to find some way to bring the

Ethiopian into the biblical picture, and they figured that the Canaan prevarication was the best way to do this, because it would also give the Great Ethiopian an inferior complex in years to come. Mankind hates and oppresses the Ethiopian so much, because his and her origin is not the same as man, as is revealed in this Booklet, and the uniqueness of the Ethiopian's hair bares this out.

- J. Who were Melchizedek, Abraham, Isaac, and Jacob?
- 17. Melchizedek was an incarnation of the Most High God of the Phoenicians called Elyon, therefore, Melchizedek was Phoenician. As stated earlier in this Booklet, the Phoenicians were a branch of the Hindu People. Abraham, Isaac, and Jacob are another way of saying Brahma, Vishnu, and Siva of the Hindu, because the Jewish People are an extraction of the Hindu, and Judaism is another form of Hinduism. Moreover, Abraham, Isaac, and Jacob are another way of saying Ham, Shem, and Japheth. Therefore, Abraham was Phoenician People and the Jews adopted that name, and thereby the meeting of Melchizedek and Abraham in the book of Genesis (14 chapter and 19 verses) meant that the Jewish People and other Caucasians would receive their religion and culture from Phoenicians, but the Phoenicians had received their basic knowledge and culture from the Ethiopians.
- 18. The Jews (Gews) were originally GREEKS from Greece who became the first Caucasian group to reach the lands (Africa and Asia) of culture and riches around three thousand (3000) B.C., hence, they became known as Hebrews in ancient times. The word HEBREW means BLACK and STAR-WORSHIPER, and because the Phoenicians were Star-Worshipers is one reason the Jewish People have a Star today as their religious symbol. Moreover, a Star is a symbol of power, knowledge, wisdom, and understanding. The Jews' original symbol was the CROSS like the other Caucasians' symbol. Hebrew is a variant of the word Ghebre (also spelled Gheber).
- K. Who were Esau and Jacob and Jacob's twelve sons?
- 19. Esau was the Phoenician People who represented the Sun God Elyon (also called Zeus and Jupiter), Jacob was the Jewish People represented the Moon God Sin (also called Siva and Hermes). Remember, all Greek and Roman Gods were originally Phoenician-Hindu Gods. The Jews combined and united all those Gods and called them ELOHIM. The good Gods were considered YAH, and the evil Gods were considered WEH, because the name Yahweh means GOOD and EVIL. Yahweh is the same as Jehovah, and Jehovah is the same as Shiva. Shiva (same as Siva, Sin, Thoth, Hermes) is the God that extracted the Caucasian from the Hindu. The Jewish men used the Jewish women to take advantage of the ruling Phoenician, and this means (plus deception) Esau lost his birthrights (heritage), because this dallying opened the way to the Jewish invasion of the Phoenician stronghold called Egypt around two thousand (2000) B.C. and during the next few hundred years is when Jacob (the Jews) stole the birthright of Esau (the Phoenicians).
- 20. The Phoenician religion was based on the 12 signs of the Zodiac, and when Jacob stole Esau's heritage in Egypt, the 12 signs of the Zodiac became Jacob's sons through which the Jews received their religion and culture by help of the Moon God and the Phoenicians

themselves. The whole Caucasian Race has shared in that Egyptian heritage of knowledge and riches. Of course, the one who originated Egyptian heritage in the first place was the Ethiopian. Egypt is in Africa.

- L. Who was Moses by race and religion?
- 21. Moses was Phoenesian; the Phoenesians were called Hebrew before the Jews adopted the terms. The Phoenesian were not original Egyptians but a people who had supplanted the Ethiopians of Egypt in much the same way that the Jews, other Greeks, and the Romans supplanted the Phoenesians. The Phoenesians originally came from Asia and were invaders of Egypt themselves around three thousand (3000) B.C. Moses was a ruler of Egypt and his title was THOTHMOSE THE FIRST. He was the beginning of the Moon Dynasty in Egypt around sixteen hundred (1600) B.C.
- 22. Moses was an incarnation of the Moon God Thoth (also called Sin and Hermes), and his magic wand was the Caduceus. Sinai (the mount that Moses was supposed to have visited so often) means mount of Sin, that is, the Moon. That mount is the Great Pyramid at Giza, Egypt. The religion of Moses was PANTHEISM. Moses came to power in Egypt during the time the Jews (who were ruling Lower Egypt) started warring with the Egyptians who were ruling Upper Egypt. It will help the Reader to understand better, if he or she remembers that there were two Egypts (Upper and Lower) during the time of the latter-day Pharaohs (the Phoenesian Pharaohs). A king could rule Upper Egypt while another ruled Lower Egypt. This was the case with the Jews and Egyptians.
- M. Since Moses was king of Egypt, why did the Jews take him as their divine leader and hero?
- 23. After the Jews invaded Egypt around two thousand (2000) B.C., they ruled Egypt (the Egypt closer to the Mediterranean Sea) for several hundred years. History calls these invaders the HYKSOS but the Egyptians called them WHITE SYRIANS. The title of their kings was POPPI, meaning, the Serpent. Around sixteen hundred (1600) B.C., the Egyptians who were ruling Upper Egypt started feuding with the Jews who were ruling Lower Egypt, because Poppi, the King and Pharaoh of the Jews, wanted the Egyptians to destroy a hippopotamus that kept bellowing at night and thereby disturbing his rest. The Egyptians refused, for they believed that certain animals were incarnations of certain Gods, and that hippopotamus was one of their sacred animals.
- 24. A war broke out between the Jews and Egyptians over this disagreement, and during this time Moses came to power in Upper Egypt as Thothmose the First. The Jews were getting military help from Asia, therefore, Thothmose realized that he could not win the war unless the Egyptians got foreign help, too. As a result, Thothmose (Moses) went to Ethiopia to solicit help, and the Ethiopians responded favorably. It was customary in those days to seal an agreement by taking a mate as a wife or concubine, hence, it is written that Moses married an Ethiopian woman (Numbers 12 chapter 1 verse), and this sealed the agreement between Egypt and Ethiopia. Moses's wife (it is written) was called ZIPPORAH (Exodus 18 chapter 2 verse).
- 25. Thothmose defeated Poppi after a hard struggle, but instead of giving the Jews the treatment of aggressors; Thothmose chose to act as protector for the Jews by treating them like

brothers and allowing them to migrate back to Asia with the aid of THE EGYPTIAN ARMY (Exodus 12th chapter 38th verse). Moreover, he gave the Jews provisions and supplied them with priests and teachers. Thothmose reacted that way because he was an incarnation of the Moon God Sin (Same as Thoth, Hermes, Siva) who had extracted the Jews from the Hindu People. Egypt took over all of western Asia after Thothmose defeated the Jews in Egypt, for Egypt then became a war-like and conquering nation. The foregoing answer is the basis of the Jews divine exodus from Egypt. Therefore, the Egyptians did not oppress the Jews in Egypt (St John 8 chapter 33 verse); it was the Jews oppressing the Egyptians.

N. Was Thothmose the First of Egypt, Moses the Law-giver?

26. No. The Law-giver was Hammurabi, King of Babylonia, who conquered all of western Asia around twenty-one hundred (2100) B.C. and even went to Europe on his strength and influence. Hammurabi is called Melchizedek in the Bible (Genesis 14 chapter 18 and 19 versus; St John 8 chapter 56 verse; Hebrews 6 chapter 20 verse; Hebrews 7th chapter). As stated earlier in this Booklet, Abraham was Phoenesian People and the Jews adopted the name. The laws of Hammurabi (sometimes called the Code of Hammurabi) were not originally his work, but he developed and established the laws and codes that were originally made by the original Sumerians of Mesopotamia and Babylonia and passed on the peoples of Euphrates and Tigris Rivers.

27. The Original Sumerians who originally created the laws were AFRICAN PYGMIES. Hammurabi was Bedouin, and the Bedouin were a branch of the Phoenesian People. Hammurabi (Melchizedek) was an incarnation of The Sun God Marduk (sometimes called Anu and Elyon). Hence, the laws of the Old Testament of the Bible came from the books of Hammurabi, and the story of the divine exodus of the Jews came from the conquering power of Thothmoses the First. Hammurabi opened the way for more Caucasian immigration from Europe to Asia, and even set the stage that lead to the Jews invasion of Egypt. All of this means that the history of the Bible is mainly based on Egyptian and Babylonian histories, cultures, and mythologies. The books of the Old Testament of the Bible were compiled by the GREEKS and the books of the New Testament were compiled by the ROMANS.

O. Is biblical history backed up by secular history?

- 28. Yes and no. and there are several reasons why: (1) Much of the Bible is based on mythology stories (2) Much of secular history (as we in the West know it) was falsely written and falsely rewritten for the purpose of setting up Caucasian supremacy (3) Much of biblical history (as we in the West know it) was intentionally mistranslated, interpolated, and tampered with to serve the same purpose Caucasian supremacy and (4) Some of biblical history does agree with secular history if one knows how to compare the two that is, if one has enough factual information to compare the two.
- 29. Five (5) We must realize that when a people is trying to make themselves look bigger than others they may take the main characters and heroes of a false or true story in religion and/or mythology and build their own story around the heroes and characters, and this means that the story may be greatly changed to suit the purpose of those rewriting it. The location, time it happened, name of characters and heroes and the real essence of the story itself may be altered.

This is why it happened in much of the Bible (Old and New Testaments) is one reason secular and biblical histories are difficult to compare and in some instances nearly impossible.

- 30. Intelligent people know by simple reason that if the characters and heroes of the Bible were able to cause masses of people to move from one place to another, change the course of histories, cause upheavals great enough in countries to cause great massacres, and even divide the time then surely those great characters and heroes of the bible would be found in other histories as well as The Bible, and they are even if one has to go to the history of MYTHOLOGY, but a person must know where to look and what he or she looking for in order to know when he or she has found it.
- P. Why do science and the Bible disagree concerning the Creation?
- 31. Because the Bible is designed to pacify and control the masses, and science is designed to utilize reason to accumulate and utilize knowledge. Religion states that God made the Universe out of NOTHING, but science knows that it is impossible to make something from nothing, therefore, this means that Nature never had a beginning and it is impossible for Nature ever to end. The Bible states that man was made from the dust of the Earth, but science has irrefutable evidence that man evolved from certain species of the tailless monkey over a long period. Much of the works of religion is based on belief but the works of science is based on reason and knowledge. The Bible is based on invisible spirits of the invisible world (the atmosphere), but science is based on Nature in General, including the invisible.
- 32. However, one of the biggest difference between science and the Bible is that science endeavors to explain HOW the Universe and the things thereof were made and why, and the Bible states that God created everything but it never attempts to tell HOW except by magic words, and any sensible person knows that just as nothing can be created by magic words today nothing was then. In other words, real knowledge (as it appeared in ancient spiritual writings) is left out of the Bible. If a book is a book of knowledge instead of ignorance, it must answer the knowledge questions: WHO, WHEN, HOW, WHAT, WHERE, and WHY, whenever it is possible to do so. The Cycle of Ignorance is ending and the Cycle of Knowledge is beginning. The Moon Cycle was the Cycle of Ignorance for the oppressed and downtrodden.
- Q. Who was Jesus by race and religion?
- 33. The religion of Jesus was EGYPTIAN PANTHEISM, and he was a HYBRID by race. The African Pygmies existed before the Great Flood and their SPIRITUAL SCIENCE was NUWAUPU, pronounced NOO-WAH-POO. Therefore, Nuwaupu is the spiritual science of all WOOLY-HAIRED people. After the Flood, Nuwaupu gradually waned and Pantheism gradually waxed. After the Moon Cycle began with Adam and Eve, Pantheism waned and religion (as we know it today) waxed. Jesus was the last legal heir to the Egyptian Throne (St Matthew 2 chapter 15 verse). He won the son of a Roman Military man of high rank and a Black Phoenesian Queen of Egypt who was unmarried (St John 8 chapter 14 verse).
- 34. As stated earlier in this Booklet, latter-day rulers of Egypt were Phoenesian and they were

called Hebrew before the Jews were. Jesus was next in line to become King of the Hebrews, because his mother was Queen and he was the oldest child. Jesus' mother ruled Egypt before the year 25 B.C., and when her ruling days were over, Jesus was supposed to ascend to the Throne of Egypt, but the Jews and Romans were controlling Egypt at that time and would not allow Jesus to take the Throne and, of course, Jesus became very wroth at the Jews and Romans. One reason the Jews and Romans did not want Jesus to become King is because he was Jesus was critical of their control over Egypt and their domination and oppression of the Phoenesians.

- 35. Jesus became a neophite and attended a school of Egyptian Mysteries called THE PYRAMID, the same type of school that Moses (Thothmose the First) had attended. During his attendance there he became illuminated, that is possessed by powerful spirit forces. In other words, Jesus became an incarnation of the Sun God Elyon and the Moon God Thoth (sometimes called Hermes Trismegistus). The man himself was called Esau Panthera. Esau is same as Jesu or Jesus, and Panthera refers to the Great Sphinx at Giza, Egypt, which has the body of a huge cat and the head or a king Jesus was an incarnation of the same Gods that Melchizedek (Hammurabi) was, and this is why it is written Jesus was a priest after the Order ofMe1chizedek (Genesis 14 chapter 18 and 19 verses; 8t John 8 chapter 56 verse; Hebrews 6 chapter 20 verse, and Hebrews 7th chapter). Melchizedek was a King, priest, and an incarnation of the Gods, Elyon and Hermes, same as Anu and Sin.
- 36. When the Romans and Jews (who were controlling Egypt) refused to allow Jesus to take the Throne of Egypt, he turned EVANGELIST and went from place to place in Africa and Asia and wherever Phoenesians could be found, telling them that he was their king sent to gather them together in unity, so that they could regain their power in Egypt, for the Phoenesians had been scattered by the cruel oppression and brutal suppression of the Romans, Jews, and other Greeks. Because he taught the Phoenesians that he was their King is why it is written that just before they killed Jesus, they mocked him with a crown of thorns and with a sign reading: Esau, King of the Hebrews, meaning the Phoenesians. The name AMEN is EGYPTIAN Revelation 3 chapter 14 verse.
- 37. Most of the Phoenicians rejected Jesus (one reason is because his father was not Phoenesian) and some even plotted against him with the Romans and Jews, because, although Jesus did, not specifically know it the spirit forces in him that possessed him had Jesus scheduled to be put to death to save the Caucasian for another two thousand (2000) years, and this is why the spirit forces in Jesus gave him the power to attract people and do works and say words that would anger the Romans and Jews to the point of killing him Contrary to the interpolations put in the Bible later that Jesus knew he was going to be killed, is the fact that Jesus was deceived by the spirit forces within him until he was actually being put to death, and evidence of this is the fact it is written that Jesus said: "Eli Eli lama sabach-tha-ni (St Matthew 27 chapter 46 verse), translated, 'My God, my God, why hast thou forsaken me.' Eli is short for Elyon, the Most High God of the Phoenesians.
- 38. The outcry mentioned in paragraph 37 is not the expression of a person who knew he was going to be put to death. That is the expression of a person deceived into believing that he would always be protected from his enemies, but found out too late he was deceived. The spirit forces that were within Jesus left him just before his captors took him prisoner, and this meant

that he was powerless to act against them Jesus' plan was to unite the Phoenesians and regain their power in Egypt, by force if necessary but the plan of the spirit forces within him was to get him killed to save the Caucasian Race for another two thousand years, that is, until the end of the Moon Cycle. Then the Caucasians' ruling power would fade away like a disappearing fog that keeps getting thinner and thinner. The Moon Cycle was predestined to last six thousand (6000) years.

- R. What is a spirit and how does an incarnation take place?
- 39. According to the Ancients, a spirit (good or evil) is CONSCIOUS GASES that can produce spirit gases from blood or water in order to emanate. There are two kinds of spirit ETHER AND GHOST (St Matthew 3 chapter 11 verse), and these two forces represent the opposites the living and dead, black and white, Sun and Moon, and so on. Whether a spirit is good or evil depends on whom it is for or against. A spirit can be good at one time and evil at another time. It is considered a good spirit to those it's for and an evil spirit to those it is against regardless of whether it is Ether or Ghost. Of course, a spirit is good to those it helps and evil to those it harms.
- 40. However, Ether can produce Ghost but Ghost can not produce Ether, just as BLACK PEOPLE can produce ALBINOS but albinos can not produce Black People. Therefore, Ghost is the spirit (God) of albinos (Caucasians) and thereby spellbinding others for Caucasians, and Ether is the spirit (the God) for Black People. According to the Ancients, Ether looks like fire or black smoke, and Ghost looks like fog. Ghost is water spirit and Ether is fire spirit Unquenchable Fire. An albino goes through a GHOST PROCESS during his or her gestation period in the mother's womb, and that process greatly lessens color pigmentation in the skin when the child is an offspring of Black Parents, as in the case of Cain. The Moon God is GHOST SPIRIT.
- 41. Since spirits are gas forces, they can enter a person's body at will and leave at will. Of course, an incarnation is a spirit God in the flesh. According to the Ancients, an incarnation takes place this way: A person can be engendered only by a fleshly father and fleshly mother, and the person predestined to become God will be contacted by voices and visions (mental contact). During the mental contacts, there may be an offer made for the person to accept or reject. The person usually accepts the offer because he is usually in no position to reject it.
- 42. When the offer is accepted, the spirit forces themselves make physical contact and they become incarnate by seeping through the flesh to the lung, and from there they dilate themselves throughout the flesh and blood of the person, then the person and the spirit forces (spirit God) are in the same image and likeness. The God becomes the image of the person and the person becomes the likeness of the God The person to that the spirit forces chose to become a God is usually a person of a royal lineage. If that man fathers a son after the spirit forces incarnate throughout his flesh and blood, the child is the SON OF MAN (the man who fathered him) and the SON OF GOD (the God that incarnate in the man). As stated earlier in this Booklet, Jesus' father was a Roman military man of high rank, and that military man proclaimed publicly that he was an incarnation of the God Faunus (St John 8 chapter 41 verse). He was also a triumvir of the Roman Triumvirate.

43. Although Jesus was predestined from birth to become an incarnation, he did the things that other ordinary people did until he was 30 years old, and this is one reason the full life of Jesus before he was 30 is not given. According to the Bible, Jesus' incarnation took place when he was 30 years old (St Matthew 3 chapter 16 verse) and this is when he became God. An incarnation does not take place in the womb, it must take place after the person is born and becomes mature. The beginning of the Book of St. John is the truest of the beginning of the four Gospels, because it begins by speaking of the spirit God that incarnates itself into the man instead of speaking of a spirit fathering a child which is one hundred percent against the procreation laws of Nature. The spirit forces of Jesus were and still are the God of Caucasians in general, but not the God of Ethiopians, and this is why Ethiopians are always the dependents, servants, slaves, and captives in Caucasians religion and civilization.

S. What is NUWAUPU?

- 44. NUWAUPU is pronounced NOO-WAH-POO. The meaning of the word Nuwaupu is THE KNOWLEDGE, WISDOM, AND UNDERSTANDING. Nuwaupu is ALL knowledge, ALL wisdom, ALL understanding finite and infinite. Nuwaupu is THE SCIENCE of sciences and THE SCIENCE in sciences. Nuwaupu is the spiritual science that existed before the Great Flood of Noah, 17 million 250 thousand years ago, and is therefore the science of the ORIGINAL CREATIVE FORCES and the original spiritual science of the African Pygmies and Ethiopians in general. Nuwaupu is the science in which and with which the Universe was GROWN. Nuwaupu existed for a long time after the Flood, but finally gave way to Pantheism in accordance with time-cycle laws of Nature. Just as, in accord with the time cycles of Nature, Pantheism eventually gave way to religion (as we know it today). Now it is time for Nuwaupu, again.
- 45. The standard knowledge of Nuwaupu is RIGHT KNOWLEDGE. Right knowledge is that knowledge which agrees with nature and its laws and its way of life and death. Right knowledge is facts without fallacy. Facts are identified by proof: logic, reason, because facts are always logical and they reason out. When all necessary and major questions about the Bible have been asked by, answered for, and known to, and understood by the so-called Negro, he and she will then be qualified for his and her OWN spiritual science which is NUW AUPU. Nuwaupu is the spiritual heritage of Ethiopians in general, and it helps all oppressed peoples.
- 46. For the sake of justice, freedom, equality, and survival, it is most important and necessary for Ethiopians to know and REMEMBER: When Caucasians say God, Jesus, Lord, Christ, or any combination of these names and titles, they mean THE SPIRIT FORCES that have enabled Caucasians to ENSLAVE, DOMINATE, and EXPLOIT Darker Peoples, and this fact is why Caucasians bomb little Negro children in churches and feel no remorse; this is why Caucasians turn Negroes away from church doors of Caucasians and still have clear conscience; this is why high ranking clergies of Christianity maintain that any thing less then complete victory over the innocent (as in Vietnam and Africa) is unthinkable, and even went so far as to tell the World boldly (and it is true) that these, unjustified attacks and wars against the innocent are "CHRIST WAR." This is true because Christ is the God of Caucasians and Christianity, and Caucasians (Christians) are the ones trying to maintain the MISERABLE STATUS QUO on Orb Earth by any and every means possible, including brutal attacks and barbarous wars.

- 47. Because Caucasians KNOW that the spirit forces called God, Jesus, Lord, Christ, et cetera, are backing them up in almost any thing they attempt to do against Darker Peoples is why Caucasian openly and boldly say and do those shameful and atrocious things against Darker Peoples, relentlessly and without remorse, in the spirit names of Christianity. Ethiopians, we had better open our minds to these APPALLING FACTS and do some serious thinking and acting for ourselves, if we wish to survive Armageddon, the last war of the Moon Cycle, which is in progress everywhere, NOW. Armageddon is THE SHOWDOWN between RIGHT and WRONG.
- 48. Nuwaupu is justice, freedom, equality, uncompromising facts, and survival for Ethiopians who accept it in the United States of America and everywhere else by help of the Forces of Nature. In conclusion, one of the most deceptive and best kept secrets of all time is that LEVIATHAN (Exodus 3rd chapter 2nd verse; Exodus 4th chapter 3rd verse; Numbers 21st chapter 6th thru 9th verses; St Matthew 3rd chapter 11th verse) IS GOD AND THE DEVIL who deceive and use the Negro as a football, hoodwinking and kicking him and her from one place to another and shifting him and her from one BELIEF (ignorance) to another, and this means that neither God nor the Devil is for the Negro. Nevertheless, there are THE ORIGINAL AND PRIMARY POWERS that existed on Earth before Noah and are found in Nuwaupu These are the powers and forces of LIBERATION for Wooly-Haired Ethiopians everywhere, and will enable us to succeed in NATIONHOOD called ETHIOPIAN NATIONALISM where we need it and in the united form we need it.